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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA
INSURANCE”
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Indian Company for Cooperative Insurance “WAFA Insurance” (the
‘Company’), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of income,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants ("SOCPA").

Basis of Qualified Opinion

©  We have not received details and underlying supports for ‘Sundry creditors’ amounting to SR 41.369 million
included in ‘Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities’ as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit
of the Company’s financial statements and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion,

Emphasis of Matters

® Note 2.2 to the accompanying financial statements which describe reasons for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company on a non-going concemn basis. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on liquidation basis i.e. assets and liabilities has been stated on expected realisable and settlement
values respectively except for property and equipment and intangibles whose carrying values have been
considered by management as approximating their fair values.

¢ Note 32 to the accompanying financial statements, which describes that the Company has filed a case for
recovery of SR 2.8 million with respect to the rent paid and expenditure incurred on renovation and improvement
to a property. The amount is included in ‘Prepayments and other assets’. The ultimate outcome of the case is
pending on the final decision from the court and cannot be determined at this stage.

¢ Note 7 to the accompanying financial statements, which includes reinsurance receivables of SR 7.7 million for
which the Company does not have underlying records. Management is currently investigating the balance and
its recoverability. However, the Company has booked total amount of provision against the balance; and

© Note 8.1 to the accompanying financial information, which describes that the Company net-off the claim
payables to policy holders against the respective balance of premium receivable, amounting SAR 23.9 million,
during the year ended 31 December 2019. It is shown as claim paid in statements of income and comprehensive
income,
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Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the Company's 2019 annual report, if any, other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information in its annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, if any,
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, management has not provided us with the
supports of SR 41.369 million included in ‘Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities’ as disclosed in Note 16 to the
financial statements, which also results in the other information being materially misstated with respect to this matter.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

As at 31 December 2019, the gross outstanding claims
including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and
other technical reserves amounted to SR 99.666
million (2018: SR 156,337 million) as reported in Note
8 of the financial statements.

The estimation of insurance contract liabilities
involves a significant degree of judgment. The
liabilities are based on the best-estimate of ultimate
cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with
the related claim handling costs.

The company principally uses an external actuary
(“management actuary”) to provide them with the
estimate of such liabilities. A range of methods are
used by the actuary to determine these provisions
which were based on a number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating to the expected settlement
amounts and settlement patterns of claims,

We considered this as a key audit matter as the
valuation of insurance contract liability require the use
of significant judgments and estimates.

Refer to Note 4 1o the financial statements which
explain significant accounting policies, the valuation
methodology used by the Company and critical
Judgments and estimates.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following procedures:

. Evaluated  whether

Understood, evaluated and tested key controls around the
claims handling and provision setting processes.
Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the management's expert based on their professional
qualifications and experience and assessed their
independence,

Performed substantive tests on the amounts recorded for
sample of claims notified and paid: including comparing
the outstanding claims amount to appropriate source
documentation to evaluate the valuation of outstanding
claim reserves,

Obtained sufficient audit evidence to assess the integrity
of data used as inputs into the actuarial valuations, we
tested on sample basis, the completeness and accuracy of
underlying claims data utilized by the Company’s actuary
in estimating the IBNR by comparing it to accounting
records.

Challenged  management's  methodologies  and
assumptions, through assistance by an actuary engaged by
us as auditor's expert to understand and evaluate the
Company’s actuarial practices and the provisions
established. In order to gain comfort over the actuarial
report issued by management's expert our actuary
performed the following:

the Company’s actuarial
methodologies were consistent with those used in the
industry and with prior periods. We sought explanation
from management for any significant differences;

i. Assessed key actuarial assumptions including claims

ratios, and expected frequency and severity of claims.
We assessed these assumptions by comparing them with
our expectations based on the Company’s historical
experience, current trends and our own industry
knowledge; and

Reviewed the appropriateness of the calculation methods
and approach along with the assumptions used and
sensitivities to the key assumptions.
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- Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the related
disclosures in the financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA and Regulations for Companies and the Company’s Bylaws and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. Please refer ‘Emphasis of Matter'
paragraph related to financial statements being prepared on a non-going concern basis.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Paragraph 135 of the Companies Law requires that the auditor includes in his report what might come to his attention
with respect to non-compliance of the terms of the Company Law or Company's Bylaws. During the course of our current

audit of the financial statements, we have noted following non-compliances of the Company Law, having no material
impact on the financial statements:

o The Company violated Article 87 of the Law of the Companies whereby, the Company was unable to hold an
Annual General Assembly Meeting of its shareholders within the six months following the end of the fiscal year.
Consequently, the Company could not file a copy of the financial statements along with Board’s report and
auditor's report for the year ended 31 December 2018, with the Ministry of Commerce and the Capital Market
Authority (CMA), as required under article 126 of the Laws of the Company,

*  The Company missed the deadline for filing of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 with
Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) and CMA including publishing of results on Tadawul,

e The Company filed annual zakat and income tax return to General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax on 03
October 2019 for the year ended 31 December 2018. However, the zakat and tax liability as determined in the
return have not been settled to date. Accordingly. outstanding zakat and income tax obligation of SR 2.105
million and SR 0.165 million respectively, along with applicable penalties for delay payment, has been
recognised in the financial statements,

For Al-Bassam & Co. For AlKharashi & Co.

P.O Box 8306,
Riyadh 11482,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Available for sale Investment

Premiums and reinsurance receivables, net
Reinsurance share of unearned premiums
Reinsurance share of outstanding claims
Reinsurance share of claims incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Prepayments and other assets

Due from related parties

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit
Property and equipment

Intangible assets
TOTAL ASSETS

31 December

31 December

Note 2019 2018

6 10,250 2979
13 1,923 1923
7 815 53,383
9 . 8,310
3 32,881 44,958
8 3,807 9,520
10 5 1,874
12 11,665 15,243
24 2,171 2,932
18 15,000 18,300
18 2,023 2,023
14 2,291 4336
14 944 1968

83,770 167,749

The accompanying notes | to 35 form part of these financial statements.

R\

—

Chief Executive Officer

e
Chairmar

Finance Manager



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims
Claims incurred but not reported

Premium deficiency reserve

Mathematical reserve for life insurance operations

Other reserves

Unearned premiums

Reinsurance balances payable

Unearned reinsurance commission

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Provision for zakat and income tax

Employees™ end of service benefits

Accrued commission income payable to SAMA

Due to related parties
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital

Accumulated losses

Re-measurement of Emplovees’ end of service benefits

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form part of these linancial statements.

Note

o0

n

=2 -]

20

32

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
65,102 78,758
26,444 49277
; 16,884
1,534 1437
8,120 11,418
. 17,235
14,696 16,173
. 1,598
62,053 36,278
4,164 2270
1,530 1,785
2,023 2,023
6,023 6,023
191,689 241,159
100,000 100,000
(209,146) (174,575)
1,227 1,165
(107.919) (73.410)
83,770 167,749

Chief Executive Officer

Chairman

Finance Manager



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

REVENUES

Gross written premiums
Cancellations

Net gross written premiums
Reinsurance premiums ceded, Net
- Local

- Foreign

Excess of loss expenses

- Local

- Foreign

Net premiums written

Change in unearned premiums, net
Net premiums earned
Reinsurance commission income
Other operating income

Net revenues

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid

Less: Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Net claims paid

Changes in outstanding claims, net

Changes in claims incurred but not reported. net
Changes in premium deficiency reserve and other reserves, net
Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting costs and expenses

NET UNDERWRITING (LOSS) / INCOME

OTHERS (EXPENSES) / INCOME

General and administrative expenses

Provision for doubtful receivables

Other income

Investment income

Realized loss on investments

Total others (Expenses) / Income

Net loss for the year attributable to the shareholders before
zakat and income tax

Zakat charged for the year

Income tax charged for the year

Net loss for the year attributable to the shareholders after
zakat and income tax

Appropriation to policyholders™ operations

Net deficit after appropriation to policvholders™ operations
Loss per share (SR) (restated)

Number of outstanding shares

Note

10
21

22
7.1

19
19

23

The accomp;-lnzjing notes 1 to 35 form part of these tinancial statements.
g .

=7 .

Chief Executive Officer

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

428 110,160
(2,650) :
(2,222) 110,160
8 (9.142)
2,095 (33.041)
= (4,496)
= (2.624)
(127) 60,857
8,925 98,985
8,798 159,842
928 15,646
1 499
97127 175,987
(40,637) (339,882)
17,140 133,237
(23,497) (206,645)
1,579 (58,724)
17,120 88,273
20 085 (25,238)
15,287 (202,334)
(1,500) (24,323)
(489) (9,270)
13,298 (235,927)
23,025 (59.940)
(22,919) (47,859)
(32,783) (53,543)
- 2,000
- 2,357
. (972)
(55,702) {98.017)
(32,677) (157.957)
(1,770) (1.000)
(124) 1
( 34,571 (158,957)
(34,571) (158.957)
Y1 ( 3.46) (15.90)
10,000,000 10,000,000

Finance Manager



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

Note

Net loss tor the year

Items that will be reclassified to statement of income in

subsequent years:

Actuarial gain on Re-measurement of Employees® end of 17
service benefits

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
insurance operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
shareholders' operations

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form part of these financial statements.

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
(34,571) (158.957)

62 804
(34,509) (158,153)
(34,509) (158.153)

Tp5 ===

Chiefl Executive Officer \*Ghairman._

Finance Manager
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

=
S
=
"

|

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss for the year

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation of property and equipment 14
Amortization of intangibles 14
Provision for doubtful receivables 7.1
Realized loss on available for sale investment

Unrealized loss on investments

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 17

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Premiums and reinsurance receivables

Reinsurers’ share of uneamed premiums

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported

Reinsurers’ share of other reserves

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Prepayments and other assets

Due from related parties

Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported

Other reserves

Premium deficiency reserve

Unearned premiums

Reinsurance balances payable

Unearned reinsurance commission

Mathematical reserve for life insurance operations

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Share compensation 24
Cash (used in) operations

Zakat and income tax paid 19
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 17
Surplus distribution paid

Net cash used in operating activities

The accompanying notes | to 35 form part of these financial statements.

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
(157.957)

(32,677)
2,071 2,564
1,024 1,475
32,783 53,543
3 972
. (1,397)
720 1,397
3921 (99,403)
19,785 42,299
8,310 60,723
12,077 41,526
5,713 31,796
i 1,343
1,874 12,357
3,578 1310
761 (296)
(13,656) 17,197
(22,833) (120,070)
(3,298) 7,297
(16,884) 16,677
(17,235) (159,708)
(1,477) 6,001
(1,598) (5,044)
97 (80)
25,775 18,778
i (5.708)
4910 (133,005)
E (2.696)
(913) (2,656)
- (6,346)
3,997 (144,703)

Chairman

Finance Manager



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangibles - (1,565)
Proceeds from disposal of investments - 31,570
Proceeds from disposal of statutory deposit 3,300 -
Purchase of property and equipment (26) (2,359)
Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities 3.274 27.646
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transaction cost relating to reduction in share capital - (300)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities - (300)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 7,271 (117,357)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,979 120,336
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,250 2,979
Non-cash supplemental information:

Reduction of capital 20 - 22,000

The accompanying notes | to 35 form part of these financial statements.

2‘?4 & —
il I M

Chief Executive Officer TNChgirman Finance Manager



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

I. ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Indian Company for Cooperative Insurance “Wafa Insurance™ (the “Company™) is a Saudi joint stock
company as sanctioned by the Royal Deeree No. M60 dated 18 Ramadan 142711 corresponding to 9 October 2006
(datc of inceplion). The Company is regislered in Riyadh with the Ministry of Commerce and Industry under
commercial registration Ne. 1010236705 dated 24 Rajab 1428H corresponding to 7 August 2007. The Company's
registered oftice address is Al-Mascef Dist., Northern Ring Road between exit 5&6, PO Box: 341413, Riyadh
11333, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company announce on tadawul dated on 14 April 2019 that registered oftice
address is changed and new address is Qortoba, Saced Bin Zaid Street. 12721, Riyadh 11333, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.

The principal activitics of the Company are to transacl (he cooperative insurance operations and all related activities
including reinsurance and agency activities under the law of Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies and
its by-laws and other regulations promulgated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The Company was granted the license (number TMN/14/20086) to practice all lines of insurance business on 6
Jumada II, 1429H corresponding to 10 June 2008G from Saudi Central Bank ("SAMA™).

The Company commenced its gencral insurance operations from 20 August 2008 and protection and savings
insurance operations from El Januvary 2009, The Company’s license has been renewed by SAMA for a period of
three years effective from 3 March 2017 corresponding to 4 Jumada 11, 1438H.The company's license has been
suspended {refer note 2.2.1). It was announced on Tadawul on January 20, 2020 o approve the election of the
membets of the Board of Directors for the company for the next session starling from the date of 19 January, 2020,
The newly appointed board is functional since then.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

This financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by Saudi Organication for Certified Public Accountants
(SOCPA), olher standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, Law of Companies and the Company's by-laws,

b

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 December 2019, were prepared in compliance with 1IFRS, as
moditied by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax (relating to the application of [AS 12 - "Income
Taxes" and IFRIC 21 - "Levies" so far as these relate to »akat and income tax).

On 17 July 2019, SAMA issued the instruction te account for the zakal and income laxes in the statement of
income. This aligns with the 1'RS and its interpretations as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and with the other standards and proncuncements that
are issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (*SOCPA™) {collectively referred io as
“IFRS ag endorsed in KSA™.

Accordingly. the Company changed its accounting treatment for zakat and income 1ax by retrospectively adjusting
the impact in line with International Accounting Standard 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (the elTects of this change are disclosed in note 32 io the financial statements),

2.2 Basis of measurement
2.2.1 Going Concern

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has accumulated tosses of SR 209,135 million (2018: SR 174.57.00 million}
which are 209.15% (2018; 174.57%) of the Company s share capital as at that date.

The Company reduced its share capital by SR 83 million during 2017 and by SR 22 million during 2018. Further,
the Company did not meet the solvency margin requirements as of 31 Deceinber 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019.

The Company received a fnal warning from SAMA on 01 May 2018, requiring the Company to maintain the
required solvency margin before 30 September 2018 and 1o appoint an independent consultant at the expense of the
Company to provide advice on this maiter, In case the Company does not take corrective measures. SAMA will
take onc or more actions including preventing the Company from accepting subscribers or investors or new
subscribers in any of the insurance aclivilies or reduce it.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (contintedi
2.2 Basis of measurement (continued)

2.2.1 Gping Concern (continuedy

The Board of Directors based on a business plan recommended 1he extra ordinary general assembly to approve the
capital reduction of 22 million and capital injection of SR 100 million. On 29 April 2018 the Company appointed a
consultant as a financial advisor to manage the process of reducing the Company's capital and carrying out all
related procedures. The Company after receiving approval from SAMA and Capital Market Authority. called for a
general assembly meeting and the reduction of capital of SR 22 million was approved by the general assembly on
05 June 2018.

On 24 May 2018, SAMA issued a letter regarding the Company's failure to meet the minimum solvency margin
requircments and suspended the Company from issuing new policics and rencwing current policics from 24 May
2018, and directed the Company 10 appoint 4 consultant which shall submit weekly report to SAMA. The Chairman
of the Board of Dircetors shall inform all the board members of the receipt of this letter and that they shall take
appropriatc actions to address the solvency, SAMA may take more actiens if the solvency position is not addressed.

‘The Company prepared a business plan internally to address accumulated losses and solvency margin issues. On 06
June 2018, the Company appointed an actuarial firm to prepare a business plan, which was approved by the Board
of Directors on 06 August 2018 and the same was submitted 10 SAMA on 16 Seplember 2018, This revised
busingss plan contained difterent scenarios and addressed the need of capital injection of SR 220 mitlion to deal
with the solvency situation and ensure going concern status of the Company.

On 31 May 2018, the Company wilh the approval of SAMA appeinted a consultant to study and analyze the
solvency situation of the Company. The consullant’s report was submitled by the end ot July 2018, in which the
consultant recommended short term. medium term and long-term actions. These recommendations included a
minimum capital injcction of SR 150 million, fixing the violations as mentioned in SAMA letlers and impravement
ol operations,

On 29 July 2018, the Company announced that its accumulated losses have exceeded 50% of the share capital of
the Company. The Boeard of Directors of the Company were informed of this significant cvent on 28 July 2018.
Under Article 150 of the Companies Law, the Board of Dircctors of the Company called, by 12 August 2018, call
an Extraordinary General Assembly, to decide ¢ither 10 Increase or decrease the share capital of the Company to the
extent that the ratio of the losses becomes less than half of the capital or to dissolve the Company subsequently, the
general assembly will be called within 45 days of the notification to the chairman of the Board of Directors and the
decision of the genecral assembly of the sharcholder must implement within 90 days of the general assembly
meeting. Failure to implement the decision of gencral asscmbly within 90 days as aforesaid would lead to
dissolution of the Company as mentioned in article 150 of the Law of Companics.

Furthermore, SAMA issued a letter on 29 July 2018 on various controls and governance related matters, requiring
the Company (o appoint a consultant within 15 days and Lo submit a report within 60 days from the date of Lhis
letter. The Company appointed a consultant and received no objection from SAMA on 23 Ociober 2018.The reporl
has not been finalized to date.

On 07 August 2018, the Company announced that the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 06 August 2018,
recommended to call for an cxtra ordinary general assembly in accordance with article 150 of the Law of
Companies to study the situation of the Company and take a decision to increase capital or reduce capital or
dissolve the Company. The Board of Directors alse clarified that this assembly is only lor the purpose of laking
decision on the strategy of dealing with the current situation of the Company and choosing one of the oplions
relerred to in article 150 of law of Companies.

Extragrdinary General Assembly Meeting was held on 10 September 2018 in which shareholders approved the
direction of the Company to proceed with procedures 16 increase the share capital and obtain the approval of the
competent authorilies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.2.1 Going Concern {continued)

Board of Directors of the Company on 03/01/14408 corresponding to 13 September 2018 decided to recommend to
the Extraordinary General Assembly to increase the capital of the Company through a right issuc of SR 220
million.

The Company received letter 1309/89 rom SAMA on 07/01/1440 corresponding 10 1§ Seplember 2018 for no-
objection to increase the Company's capital from SR 100 million to SR 32 million through a right issue provided
that the Company meets all requirements ol other oflicial authoritics.

The Company's management met SAMA on 11 Oclober 2018 to check the status of the Company and to discuss
solutions available lo save/ rescuc the Company in light of the current losscs.

The Company announced on Tadawul on 26/02/1440 1] corresponding to 04 November 2018, that the Board of
Directors reviewed developments on capital increase, and discussed intensively the challenges and difficutties
faced by the Company in appeintment of underwriter to cover the required amount of capital increasc. The Board
felt that they are entrusted 1o do what is possible to protect shareholders and stakcholders of the Company, and they
arc awarc of the current stage and the time remaining and available under the law. Ilowever, it is not possible to
obtain the underwriter to dale to cover the capital increase. This entails a clear risk that the Company will be
dissolved in accordance with Article [3Q of the Law of Companies if the capital is not increased within the
slatutory period. Accordingly. in order 10 protect the interests of the sharcholders of the Company, the Board ol
Directors has only an option to reduce the capilal 1o ensure the Company's continuation. The reduction of capital of
insurance companics to less than SR 00,000,000 is not possible under the [nsurance Companies Control Law and
its Executive Regulations. As statcd by the SAMA in its explanatory statement issucd on 13 August 2018, the
Board recommends to change the activities of the Company, and reduce the capital aficr obtaining nccessary
regulatory approvals. The Company is not prevented from completing capital increase procedures if the
arrangements with the underwriter are done on a timely basis, a possibility that the Board of Directors is unlikely o
achicve under the current circumslances,

On 28/02/144011 corresponding to 06 November 2018, the Company received a letter reference 89/12886 from
SAMA referring to the Company's announcement on the websile of Tadawul dated 04 November 2018 containing
the recommendation of the Board of directors to change the Company's activitics and with reference to article 75 of
the Implementing Regulations of Cooperative Insurance Companies Control System which contains procedures
related to cessalion of insurance activitics. SAMA informed the Company's Board of directors to comply with all
statutory requircments and, it the Company met those stalulory requirements as per the recommendation ta cease
the activitics of the Company as deseribed in the announcement of the Company referred to above, it must provide
SAMA with statutory requirements contained in the said Arlicle 75,

In response o SAMA's aforcsaid letter, the Company informed SAMA on 29/02/14401 corresponding to 07
November 2018 that during the mecting with SAMA on 11 October 2018 they discussed the ditticulty in having the
underwriting arrangement in place for increasc in capital. Further, because of the Company's current conditions,
making it diflicult for the Company to proceed with this option, the idea of cancelling the insurance license of the
Company and change of its activitics was discussed, if the Company is unable to appoint an underwriter, As it was
not possible to appeint an underwriter to date due to suspension of business, ban on writing business and the time
remaining betore the Company is subjecled to the Article 150 of the Law of Companics, the Board of Directors, 1o
ensure continuation of the Company and protection of the Shareholders' cquity and policyholders. have no other
option but to reduce capital. which requires changing the Company's activities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continvedi

2.2.1 Gaing Concern (continied)

Therefore, the Company requested SAMA to cancel the Insurance license of the Company and to instruct the
Ministry of Commerce and Investment (MOCD) and (CMA) 1o complete the procedures for cessation of the
insurance activitics, and advising the Company to take the approval of the Extraordinary General Assembly, so that
the Company can ccase the operations and amcnd its activities, The Company will be deemed dissolved under
article 150 of the Law of Campanies on 09 December 2018.

IFurther to the above stated announcements, the Company announced on Tadawul en 02 December 2018 that it
would like to inform its shareholders that the Board of Directors reviewed on 21/03/i44011 corresponding to 29
November 2018 developments regarding the increase of capital and discussed intensively the efforts made to date,
including the progress of negotiations with the underwriters and addressing the concerned parties on the change of
activity., The Board is awarc that it is only less than ten days to the end of statutory period prescribed under Article
L30 of the Law of Companies (ninety days from the date of the General Assembly voted on capital increase), which
is not suflicient to complete the statutory requirements for implementation of any of the two options referred io.
Accordingly, since sericus endeavors are stilt ongoing and bascd on what the Company's legal counsel has
presented to, and the protection of the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, is to restrict the request for financial
rcorganization under Chapter [V with the Bankruptey Syslem in order to free the Cempany fram the period in the
law of companies until the completion of necessary procedures 10 increase the capital of the Company or change
the activity and reduce the capilal under Article 45 of the Bankruptey Law and Article 42 of its exccutive
regulations. The Board of Dircetors wishes 10 clarily that the financial reorganization procedure, although included
in the bankruptey system, is not considered a decision to liquidate the Company or to enter into bankruptey, This is
one of the new instruments approved by the regulator to pretect troubled companies from liquidation and
bankruptcy, The financial reorganization of the Company Lo increase its capital or reduce it aftcr the change of
activity and will be under the supervision ot the Courl. The procedure is subject to the approval of the regulators
and stakeholders in all cases.

The Company announced on Tadawul on 28/03/1440 corresponding to 6 Decenber 2018 that i1 has successfully
registered the applicalion for the Company’s financial reorganization, in accordance with Article 45 of the
Bankrupicy Law and Article 42 of its Exccutive Regulations. Consequently, the Company is decmed to be
cxempted from the statutory period stipulated in Article 150 of Law of Companies.

The Company announced on Tadawul on 19/4/1440 corresponding to 26 December 2018 that the request for
financial reorganization has been sent to 9th Commercial Department a1 the Commercial Court in Riyadh. The
application was accepled by the court on February 13, 2019 (08/06/1440), As per the order of the court, Company
should hold all payments under article 46 of Bankruptey law except the operational expenses of the Company from
the date of submission request (12/04/1440 corresponding 21 December 2018) and appoint the trustee to ensure the
submission of financial rcorganization proposal within 150 days. In respect of court order the trustec took charge
on March 5, 2019. On July 10, 2019 {corresponding to 07/11/1440H), the Company submitted financial
reorganiration proposal. The scssion was held on 02/01/1441 corresponding to Seplember 1, 2019 at Commercial
Court in Riyadh, the Ninth Dept, In which the Court reviewed the reorganization proposal and gave judgment that
the Company should submit the reorganization proposal which includes the plan that will be followed Lo return into
practice and conlinue its activity. and granted the Company an additional time of 150 days from 8/1t/1340
corresponding July 10,2019, The company submilted revised reorganization plan on 8th January 2020.The court
ordered the Company to obtain approval of sharcholders and its creditors by 24th February 2020 and 2nd March
2020.Further in the annual general meeting held on 09th of January 2020. The sharcholders have disapproved the
report of board of directors the financial statement and the audit report for the vear ended 3 Lst December 2018,
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued
2.2.1 Going Concern {contived)

The accumulated losses, deficiency in solvency margin. which led to final warning letter from SAMA and
consequential suspension of business of the Company by SAMA, significant decrease in human resource, pending
appointment of linancial advisor and underwriter, the Company’s intention to further reduce capital, the Company's
request to SAMA to cancel its insurance license and cessation of insurance activities and registration of the
Company's application for financial reorganization under Chapler 1V of Bankruptey Law, as aforesaid, have
created a material uncertainty and cast significant doubt on the Company's abilily 1o continue as going concern and
therefore, the Company may not be able to realize its asscts and discharge its liabilities in the nermal course of
business.

Under the going concern assumplion it is assumed that the entity will continue in operation for the foresecable
future and has neither the intention nor the need to liquidale or curtail materially the scale of ils operations.
However, due to the facts and circumstances mentioned above, going concern assumption has not been followed
while preparing the financial statement for the ycar ended 31 December 2019, Thercfore, financial statement has
been prepared under the liquidation basis of accounting i.e. assets and liabilities have been recorded on expected
realizable and seltlement values respeclively except for property and equipment and intangibles whose carrving
values have been considered by management as approximating their fair values,

2.2.2 Basis of presentnation

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for
Insurance Operations and Sharchelders™ Operations and prepares the linancial information accordingly. Assets,
tiabilities, revenues and expenses clearly attributable to cither activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The
hasis of allocation of expenses from joint operations is determined and approved by the management and the Board
of Directors.

The statement of financial position, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance
operations and sharcholders operations which arc presented in Note 31 of the financial statement have been
provided as supplementary financial statement to comply with the requirements of the guidelincs issued by SAMA
implementing regulations. Until 31 Becember 2017, this information was shown in the main statements.

SAMA implementing regulations requires the clear segregation of the asscts, liabilities, income and expenses of the
insurance operations and the shareholders operations. Accordingly, the financial pesition, statements of income,
comprehensive income and cash Mows prepared for the insurance operations and sharcholders operations as
referred to above. reflect only the assets, liabilitics. income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the
respective operations,

In preparing the Company's financial statements in compliance with IFRS. the balances and transactions of the
insurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the sharcholders® operations. Interoperation
balances, transactions and unrealized gains or losses, it any. are eliminated in full during amalgamation.

The accounting policies adopted for the insurance operations and sharcholders operations are uniform for similar
transactions and cvents in similar ¢ircumstances,

The inclusion of scparate information of the insurance operations with the financial statement of the Company in
the linancial position, the statements of income, comprehensive income and cash [Tows as well as certain relevant
notes to the financial statements represents additional supplementary intormation as required by the implementing
regulations (Nole 31).

2.2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statemens are expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR). which is the functional and presentation
curreney of the Campany. All financial slatement presented in SR has been rounded oft to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated.

2.2.4 Fiscal year
The Company foltows a liscal year ending 31 December.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 New standards and amendments to existing standards
The accounting policies, cstimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these [inancial statcments are
consistent with those used in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2019 except for the adoption of the following new standards and other amendments to existing standards mentioned
below which have had no signilicant linancial impact on the financial statements of the Company on the current
period ar prior period and are expected to have no significant effect in future periods.

311 IFRS 16- Lease

[FRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The new standard eliminates
the current dual accounting model for lessees under [AS 17, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance
leases and ofl-balance sheet operaling leases, Instead, [FRS 16 proposes on-balance sheet accounting model.

The Company adopted IFRS 16 using the modilied retrospective approach. The Company elected (o apply the
standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Company elected
10 use the exemptions proposed by the standard regarding lease contracts for which the lease lerm ends within [2
months of the date of initial application, and lcasc contracts for which the underlying asset is of low valuc. The
Company has performed an assessment of [FRS 16 and determined the dilference as compared to IAS 17 and [FRC
4 is not material to the Company’s financial statements as a whole.

3.1.2 IFRS 2 Share-based payment
Amendments 1o [FRS 2 — “Share-based Payment”, applicable for the period beginning on or afler | January 2018.
The amendments cover classification and measurement of three accounting arcas, tirst, measurement ol cash-settled
share-based payments, second, classification of sharc-bascd payments sctiled net of tax withholdings, and third,
accounting for a modification of a share-bascd payment from cash-scttled to equily-setlied. The impact is not
matcrial for the Company.

3.1.3 IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 —“Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ applicable from [ January 2018 presents a five-step model to
determing when 10 recognize revenue, and at what amount. The application of this standard could have a significant
impact on how and when revenug is recognized, with new eslimates and judgments, and the possibility of revenue
recognition being accclerated or deferred. Lowever, insurance companies are excluded from the scope of IFRS 15,

3.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments and revisions to the [niernational Financial Reporting
Standards, which have been published and are mandatory for compliance for the Company with eftect from luture
dates.

3.2.1 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (including amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts)

The implementation of IFRS 9 is expected to result in a significant portion of financial assets currcntly classified as
available-for-sale being re-classificd as at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI). Credit allowances for financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities
measured at fair value. with changes in fair value recognized in QCI, are expected to increase due 1o the
introduction of the cxpected credit loss methodology. The Company will avail exemptions available to insurers
and is considering deferring the implementation of [FRS 9 until a later date, but no later than January 1, 2023. The
impact of the adoplion of IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial stalements will, to a large extent. have to take into
account the interaction with the IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts”, Considering the current situation of the Company
as specified in Note 2.2.1. the Company has not assessed the effect of adoption of IFRS 9 to date.

3.2.2 IFRS 17 [nsurance Contracts

IFRS |7 *Insurance contracts” was published on May 18, 2017 with the effective date of Fanuary 1, 2021, On 25th
June 2020 1ASB deferred the effective date of the standard as effccting tor the annual periods beginning on or after
January |, 2023.IFRS 17 provides comprehensive guidance on accounting for insurance contracts and investment
contracts with discretionary participation features, For non-life and short-term lite insurance contracts [FRS 17
introduces mandatory discounting of loss reserves as well as a risk adjustment for nen-financial risk, for which
confidence level equivalent disclosure will be required. Further, [FRS 17 will change the presentation of insurance
contract revenue, as gross written premium will no longer be presented in profit or loss. Considering the current
situation of the Company as specified in Note 2.2.1, the Company has not quantitied the potential impact on the
linancial siatements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING, ESTIMATES, JUDJEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements requires the usc of estimates and assumptions that aflect the reporied amounts
ol assels and liabilitics and disclosure of contingenl assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statcments and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these cstimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations ol future events that arc believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

a) Ultimate liability arising from ¢laims made under insurance contracts

It is the Company’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such c¢laims. The provision for
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to (he
statement of financial posilion dale, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the statement of financial
position date. The primary technique adopted by the management in cstimating the cost of notitied and 1BNR claims,
is that of using the past claims settlement trends to predict future claims scttlement trends.

Claims requiring courl or arbitration decisions are cstimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally estimate
propetty claims, Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not reported, on a
quarterly basis. The Company also uses the services of an independent actuary for the valuation of IBNR as well as
premium deficiency reserves.

b} Impairment in available-for-sale equity

The Company determines thal available-for-sate equity financial asscts arc impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decling in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is signiticant or
prolonged requircs judgment. [n making this judgment. the Company evaluates among other facters, the normal
volatility in sharc price. the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows. Impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investes, industry and scctor performance., changes in technology, and
financing and operational cash Mows,

¢) Impairment in insurance receivables

The Company assesses receivables that arc individually significant and receivables included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually asscssed for impairment
and for which an impairmenl loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective asscssment of
impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment, [n making this judgment, the Company evaluates credit
risk characteristics that consider past-due status and other loss event fagiors being indicative of the ability to pay all
amounts due as per contractual terms.

d) Fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valualion
technigues. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used (o determine fair values, they are validated
and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the arca that created them. All models are
calibrated to ensurc that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical. models
use only obscrvable data, however arcas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty). volatilities and
correlations requirc management to make estimales, Changes in assumptions about these factors could afteet
reported Fair value of financial instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING, ESTIMATES AND JUDEJMENTS fcontinued)
4.1 Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements (continued)

5.2

e} Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of equipment and fixture

The Company’s management determines the cstimated uselul lives of equipment and fixture for calculating
depreciation. This estimate is determined afler considering the expected usage of the assct or physical wear and
tear.

Management reviews the uscful lives, residual values and depreciation method of cquipment and fixture annually
and luture depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management believes the uselul lives, residuat values
and depreciation method diller from previous estimates.

f) Provision for zakat

In making cstimate tor the current zakat payable by the Company, the management considers the applicable laws
and the decisions/judgements of zakat and tax aulhorities on certain issucs in the past.

g) Provisions for employees’ end of service benefits

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plans are determined through actuarial valuation using the Projecied Unit
Credit Method. The method invelves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future increase in medical costs. Duc to the long-term nature of these benefits, such estimates are subject
to certain uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in
note L7 of these tinancial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks including
call and time deposits with tess than three months”™ maturity from the date of acquisition.

Receivable from policyholders

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments. These are recognized
inilially at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition. receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
statement of insurance operations, An allowance for impairment of receivables is cstablished when there is
objective evidence that the carrving amount will not be recoverable,

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related Lo the acquisilion and renewal of insurance contracts are deferred and
amortized on a basis consistent with the term of the related policy coverage except for marine cargo which is fully
deferred for policics initiating during the last three months of the year. All other acquisition costs are recognized as
an expense when incurred. Amortization is recorded in the statement ot income,

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benetits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.
An impairment review is performed at cach reporting date or more trequenily when an indication of impairment
arises, It the assumptions relating 10 Nuture profilabiltity of these policies are not realized, the amoniization of these
costs could be accelerated. and this may also require additional impairment write-ofts in the statement of insurance
operations. Delerred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the labilily adequacy tesl for each reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontineed)
Property and equipment and intangibles

Properly and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. il any. These arc
deprecialed on a straight-linc basis over their expected usetul lives which are summarized as follows:

Years
Furniture and fixtures 10
Oftice equipment and other assels 4
Computer hardware 4
Computer Software 4
Motor vehicles 4

Expenditure on maintenance and repairs arc expensed, while expendilure for betterment are capitalized. Assets
costing less than SAR 3,000 are depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year of acquisition. An item ef property and
cquipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its usc or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceceds and the carrying amoumt of the asset) is included in the statement of income - insurance
operations when the asset is derccognized, The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property and equipment are reviewed annually ang adjusted prospectively, it appropriate. The carrying values of
these assels are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in ¢ircumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where (he carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amounts, the assets are written dewn to their recoverable amount.

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment losses whencver cvents or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount might nol be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is rccognized for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of the asset’s [air value
less cost to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which therc arc scparately identifiable cash Mows (cash-generating units). Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the statement of income under
other general and administrative expenses.

Acquired computer sollware’s have finite life and arc capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the same. These costs are amortized on the basis of the sollware’s expected useful life.

Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment except in case of investments held at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), For investments that are (raded in organized financial markcts, fair value is determined by reference
to exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

a) Investments held at Fair Value through Income statemenat (FVIS)

Investments in this category include those investments held for trading or those designated as FVIS on initial
recognition. [nvestments classified in this category are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in short
term and are recorded at fair value.

After initial recognilion, investments held at FVIS are measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in Tair value are
recorded in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Special commission income and dividend income reccived on financial assets held as FVI1S are reflected as income
from FVIS financial instruments in the statement of comprchensive income - insurance operations/ sharcholders
operations in line with the underlying assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continnedi
Investments {cosntinued)

b) Awvailable for sale investments (AFS)

[nvestments which are classified as AFS are subsequently measured at fair value, Available for sale investments are
those investments that are neither held-to-maturity nor held for trading. For an available for sale invesiment where
the fair value has not been hedged, any unrealized gain or loss arlsing [rom a change in its fair value is recognized
directly in the statement ol comprehensive income until the invesiment is derecognized.

¢} Held to maturity investments (HTM)
Held to maturity investments are initially recorded at cost, being fair value of consideration given. Subscquent Ly
these arc measurcd at amortized cost (using effective interest rate) less impairment losses.

d) Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date
that the Company commits to purchasc or scll the asscts). Regular way purchascs or sales of financial asscts arc
transactions that require seillement of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place,

Classification of financial instruments

The Company at initial recognition determines the relevant classification of financial assels and tinancial liabilities
based on its judgment.

Impairment of reinsurance and other financial assets

An asscssment is made at each reporting dale 1o determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific
linancial assct or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of income.

impairment is determined as follows:

For assets carried at fair valuc, impairment is the ditference between cost and tair value, less any impairment logs
previously recognized in the statement of income.

For assets carried al cosl, impairment is the difference belween carrying value and the present value of future cash
flows discounted at the current market rale of return for a similar financial asset;

[mpairment of other non-financial assets

Asscts that have an indefinite useful life — for example, land — are not subject to depreciation and are 1esied
annually for impairment. Assets thal are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever evenis or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount gxceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows {cash-generating units).

Zakat and taxes

In accordance with the regulations of the General Authorily lor Zakal and Tax ("GAZT"), the Company is subject
to rakal attributable to the Saudi sharcholders and to income tax atiributable to the loreign sharcholders, income
laxes are computed on the sharcholders share of nel adjusted income for the year, Zakat and income tax is accrued
ott a monthly basis.



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

5§ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continwed

5.9 Zakat and taxes {continued)

Income Tax:

‘The income tax expense or credit for the period is the lax payable on the current period’s taxable income. based on
the applicable income tax rate tor cach jurisdiction. adjusted by changes in deferred tax asscts and liabilitics
allributable to temporary diflerences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacied or subslantively enacted al the end
of the reporting period in the country where the company operate and generale taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. [t cstablishes provisions, wherc appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to
the tax authorities, Adjustments arising from the final income tax assessments are recorded in the period in which
such assessments are made. The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted for the changes in deferred tax asscts and
liabilitics attributable Lo the temporary differences and to the unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilitics for tinancial reporting purposes and amounts used for the taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax recognised is based on the expected manncr of realization or settlement of the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilitics using the tax rates enacted or substantively cnacted at the reperting date. A
deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which

the deductible temporary differences and the tax credits can be utilized. Deferred (ax asset is reduced to (he exlent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deterred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences betwecen the carrying amount and tax
bases ol Investments in forcign operations where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary dilferences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsct where there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current tax assets and
Habilitics and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current 1ax assets and lax
liabilities are offsct where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offsct and intends either to settle on a nel
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the Lability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of income, except to the exient that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Due to significant losses, the deferred tax asset has not been recorded in these financial siatements.,

[FRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncerlaimy that allects
the

application of TAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxcs or levics outside the scope of [AS 12, nor does il
specitically include requirements refaling to interest and penaltics associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatiments by taxation auvthorities

= How an cntity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases. unused tax losses. unused tax credits and 1ax rates

* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has ta determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more
olher uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncerlainly nesds 10 be
followed.

Zakat:

The Company is subject 1o Zakal in accordance with the regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax
("GAZT™Y, Zakat expense is charged to the statement of income. Zakat is not accounted for as income tax and as
such no deterred tax is calculated relating 10 wakat.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinted
Other provisions

A provision for incurred liabilities is recognized when the Company has a present legal or construclive obligation
as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outilow of resources will be required to setile the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating, losses.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Aricles of Association and in compliance with Article 70(2g) of the
Implementing Regulations for Cooperative Insurance of SAMA, the Company atlocates 20% ot the net income
each year to the legal rescrve until it has built up a reserve equal to the  paid-up capital. Since the Company has
accumulated losses, no such provision for legal reserve has been made in current year.

Recognition of premium and reinsurance commission revenue

Gross premiums and commissions are recognized with the commencement of the insurance risks proportionally
over the period of coverage. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission. The portion of premium and
commission Lhal will be earned in the future is reported as uncarncd premium and commission, respectively, and is
deferred on a basis consistent with the term of the related policy coverage excepl for marine cargo which is fully
deferred for policies iniliating during the last three months of the year,

[nvestment income

[nvestment income is recognized on an cffective yield basis laking account of the principal outstanding and the
commission rate applicable. Income from investments is principally earned from term deposits,

Commission income from short-term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis using the eftective interest
rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right (o receive payment is cstablished.
Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for a portion of its businesses, Reinsurance
asscts represent balances due from reinsurance companics. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with reinsurance policies and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contract,

An impairmenl review is performed at cach reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Company may not
recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company
will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably, The impairment loss is recorded in statement of income -
insurance operations. Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to
policyholders.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (rontinned)
Reinsurance {continned

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companics. Amounts payable are eslimated in a
manper consislent with the associated reinsurance contract. Reinsurance asscts or liabilitics are

derecognised when the coniraclual rights are extinguished or expirc or when the contract is ransferred to another
party.

The Company also assumcs reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts where
applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenuc or expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product
classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies.
Amounls payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derccognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

Quistanding claims

Outstanding claitms comprise the estimated cost of claims incurred but not scttled at the date of statement of
financial position together with related claims handling costs and a reduction for the expected value ol salvage and
other recoveries, whether reported by the insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the date ol
statement ol financial position are made on the basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based on
managemenl’s judgment and the Company*s prior experience is maintained for the cost of setiling claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR) including related claims handling costs and the expected value of salvage and other
recoverics at the statement of financial position date. The 1BNR is caleulated based on the recommendation of an
independent actuary.

Any difference between the provisions at the date of the stalement of financial position and scttlements and
provisions in the following year is included in the stalement ol insurance operations for that year. The outstanding
claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of reinsurance is shown scparately.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether its recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate using current cstimates of future cash Aows under its insurance contracts, [f that assessment shows that
the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less retated deferred policy acquisition costs) is inadequate in the
light of estimated futurc cash Nows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognized in the statement of insurance
operalions and an unexpired risk provision is created. The Company estimates these reserves based on an
independent actuarial valuation,

Employees' end of service benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits is accrued currently and arc payable as a lump sum te all employees under the
terms and conditions ol Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their cmployment contracts, Employees’
end of service payments are based on cmployces® final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of
scrvice, as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of Saudi Arabia, An independent actuary. using the
projected unit credit method. carricd out the valuation as al 31 December 2018. All past service cost are recognized
as an cxpense immediately in statement of insurance operations. All actuarial gains or losses on detined benefit
obligation are recognized in other comprehensive income,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtintied

Short term Benefit
Short-term employee benefits, include leave pay and airlare. arc current liabilities included in accrucd expenscs.
nreasured at the undiscounted amount that the entity cxpeets 1o pay as a result of the unused entitlement,

Define contribution plan
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employces to the General Organization for Social
[nsurance. This represents a defined contribution plan, The payments made arc cxpensed as incurred.

Financial Instruments

Recognition, initial measurement

Iinancial asscts and financial liabilitics arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value plus ransactions costs, except for
those carried at fair value through stalement of income which are measured initially at fair value,

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished discharged, cancelled er expired.

Financial assets und financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subscquent measurement, linancial assets are classitied into the following calegories upon
initial recognition:

. loans and receivables

. financial assets al [air valuc through profit or loss (FVYTPL)
. held-to-maturity (11'TM) investments

. available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

The Company’s financial asscts consist of cash and cash equivalents loans, receivables and investments,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics within the scope of TAS 39 are classified as financial liabilitics at fair value through statement
of income and other comprehensive income or other financial liabilities, as appropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial liabilitics at initial recognition, All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair valuc. The Company’s linancial liabilitics include accounts payables and other payables, due to related
partics. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as financial labilities at fair value
through statement of inceme and other comprehensive income or *other financial liabilities™.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are oMset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right Lo offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and cxpense is not offset in the
staterent of income unless required or permitied by any accounting standard or interpretation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued)

Foreign currency transactions

Transaciions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Rivals a1 rales prevailing on the dates of
such transactions. Monelary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi
Riyals at rates prevaiting on the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the statements ol
income. Foreign exchange ditfercnces are not significant and have not been disclosed scparately.

Surplus from insurance operations

In accordance with the requirements ol the implementing regulations issued by SAMA, 90% of the net sumplus
from insurance operations is transferred to the statement of shareholders’ operations, while 10% ol the net surplus
is distributed to policyholders. However, in the case of loss, SAMA has directed the Company to transfer the
whole amount 1o the statement of shareholders’ operations.

Segmental information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company thal is engaged in providing products or scrvices (a
business segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments, For
management purposes, the Company is organized into busincss units bascd on their products and services and has
four reportable segments as follows:

s Motor
s Medical
s  Others

»  Shareholders’ segment - reperting shareholder operations of the Company. Income carncd from invesiments is
the only revenue gencrating activity. Cerlain direct operating expenses and other averhead expenses are
allocated 1o this segment on an appropriate basis. The surplus or loss from the insurance operations is allocated
to this segment on an appropriate basis.

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiel operating
decision-maker. The chicf operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operaling segments, has been identified as the chiel execulive officer that makes strategic
decisions. No inter-segment transactions occurred during the vear.

Insurance Contract

The Company issues insurance contracts that transter insurance risk. Insurance contracts arc those contracts where
the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensale the poticyholder if a
specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a peneral guideline, the Company defines
significant insurance risk as the possibilily of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event,

5.25% Revenue recognition

Premiums and commissions are taken inte income over the terms of the policies o which they relate on a pro-rata
basis. Retained premiums and commission income, which retate to uncxpired risks beyond the end of the financial
period. are reported as unearned and deferred based on the following methods:

»  Last threc months premium al a reporting date is considered as unearned in respect of marine cargo;
*  Pre-defined caleulation for engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond a single year,
[n accordance with this caleulation. lower premiums are earned in the lirst year which graduatly increase towards

the end of the tenure of the policy; and

= Actual number of days for other lings of business.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contintied)

5.25 Revenue recognition (continued}

5.26

5.27

Unearned premiums and commissions represent the portion of premiums and commissions relating to the unexpired
period of coverage. The change in the provision for unearned premium and unearned commission Is (aken 1o the
statemicnt of income in the same order that revenuce is recognised over the period of risk,

Unearned commission income

Commission receivable on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised over the terms of the
insurance conlracts to which they relate. Amorlisation is recorded on the same basis as premium in the statement of
income.

Insurance and investment contracts

The Company issues insurance ¢ontracts that transfer insurance risk, Insurance contracts are those contracts where
the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the pelicyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if'a
specified uncertain future event adversely aflects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defincs
significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured cvent that are
at least 10% more than the benefits payahle if the insured event did not oceur.

Investmenl contracts are those contracts that do not transfer signilicant insurance risk. The Company’s unit linked
products have been classified as investment contracts. These represent portfolios mainiained 1o meet the specific
investment objectives of policyholders who bear the credit, market and liquidity risks related to the investments.

The Company s insurance and investment contracts de nol contain any discretionary participatory features.
Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some insurance contracts permit the Compuny to sell (usually damaged) asscts acquired in scitling a claim {for
cxample, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third partics for payment of some or all costs
{lor example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurcment of the outstanding claims liability.
The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of property.

Subrogation rcimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding ¢laims
liability, FThe allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the action against the liable
third party,
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3{ December 2019

Insurance Shareholders’ Total
Operations Operation
Cash in banks 9,871 379 10,250
Total 9871 379 10,250
31 December 2018
Insurance Shareholder’ Total
Operations Operation
Cash in banks 1,487 1,492 2,979
Total 1,487 1,492 2,979

7. PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES, NET

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Policyholders 65,056 76,513
Reinsurance receivables 60,472 68,800
125,528 145313
Less: Proviston lor doubtful debts frote 7. 1) (124,710 (51.930)
815 53,383

7.1 The movement in the provision for doubtful debts of premium receivables is as follows:

3l December

31 December

2019 2018
Balance al beginning of the year 91,930 38,387
Provision during the year 32,783 53,543
Balance a1 ending of the year 124,713 91,930
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7. PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES (contimed)

As at December 31, the ageing of receivable from policyholders and refnsurer which fncludes duc from related
parly is as follows:

Pust due but not impaired

Neither past due 91 to 180 181 to 365

Total nor impaired days days More than 365 days
2019 SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR
Policyholders® 65,056
Reinsurers 62,881
2018
Policyholderts’ 11,539 -
Reinsurers 44,776 13,502 10.333 14,801 6,140

The Company classifies balances as “past due and impaired”™ on case by casc basis and an impairment adjustment is
recorded in the stalement of insurance operations,

8. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS INCLUDING RESERVES

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Gross outstanding claims and reserves:

Gross outstanding claims 66,102 20,840
L.ess: Realizable value of salvage and subrogation 1,000 2,082
65,102 18,758
Claims [ncurred But Not Reported (IBNR) 26,444 49,277
Premium deficiency reserve - 16,884
Other reserve 8120 11,418
Total 99,666 156337

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims and reserves:
Outstanding clainis 32,881 44,958
Claims incurred but not reported 3.807 9,520

Tolal 36,688 54,478
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8. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS INCLUDING RESERVES (continued)

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Net outstanding claims and rescrves:
Quistanding claims 32,221 33,800
Claims incurred but not reported 22,637 39.757
Premium deficiency, catastrophe and other reserve 8120 28,302
62,978 101,85¢

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Claims net-off with policy holders balance receivable balances 23,917 15,385
Third party claim 16,720 1,755
40,637 17,140

Total Claim scttled

Claims paid and reinsurance share ol claims paid amounting to SR 23917 million and SR 15.385 million
respeclively are the claims netted ofT against accounts receivable with the respective counter pariics. The
movement for year ending 31 Decemnber, 2019 is;

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Gross balance 88,973 76,095
Less: Gross Claims setiled net-off (23.917) -
Add: Reinsurers” share of claims paid - (15,385}
65,056 60,710

Net Balance

8.1 Claims development table

The tollowing reflects the cumulative gross claims, including both claims notitied and incurred but not reported for each
successive accident year at cach financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to date, The
development ol insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ultimate value of (he
claims.

I'he Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order 1o protect against adverse
future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes mote certain,
adverse claims experiences will be eliminaled which results in the release of reserves from earlier accident years. In
order (0 maintain adequate reserves, the Company will transfer much of this release to the current accident vear reserves
when (he development of claims is less mature and there is much greater uncertainty attached to the ultimate cost of
claims,

Claims (riangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of tinancial years,
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10.

I1.

SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

UNEARNED PREMIUMS

31 December 2019

Balance st the beginning of the year
Nel premiums written during the year
Premiums carncd during the year

Balance at the cod of the year

Balance ai the beginning of the ycar
Net Premiums written during the year
Premiums earned during the year

Balance at lhe end of the year

Gross Reinsurers’ share Net
17,235 (8,310) 8,025
(2,222) 2,095 {127}

(15,013) 6,215 (8,798)
31 December 2018
Giross Rcinsurers’ share et
176,943 {69.033) 107,910
110,160 {42,183) 67,977
{269,868) 102,906 {166,962)
17,235 {8.310) 8,025

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

Balance at beginning of the year
Policy acquisition costs incurred
Policy acquisition cosls amortized
Balance at the end of the year

UNEARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION

Balance at the beginning ol the year

Re-insurance commission income received during the year
Re-insurance commission income earned during the year
Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

1,874 14,231
(374) 11,966
(1,500) (24.323)
- [,874

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

1,598 6,641
(670) 10,603
(928) (15,646)

. 1.598




SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

12. PREPAYNMENTS AND OTIIER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses comprised the following:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Receivables [rom TPA 5,668 6,668
Prepaid TPA fee & others 2,863 2.863
Prepaid rent 1,650 3465
Accrued manafeth income 1,292 1,202
Prepaid medical insurance 114 258
Prepaid regulatory and other fees 43 325
Advance to employees -- 63
Others 3s 307
11,665 15,243

13. AVAILABLE FOR SALL INVESTMENT

31 December 2019

Insurance Shareloiders
Available for sale operations operations
Unquoted securities 1,923 -
1,923 --
31 Dcecmber 2018
Insurance Shareholders
Available for sale Operations
Unguoted securities 1,923 --
1,923 -~
Movenment im the investment 1s as following:
2019 2018
Operation shareholder Total Cperation shareholder Total
Opening balance 1923 1,923 15,619 3,950 19,569
Purchase during the year - - -
Disposal during the year {13,696) {3,950) {17,646)
Linding Balance 1,923 - 1,923 1,923 - 1,923

Unguoted securitics represents investment in shares of Najm for insurance services amounting to SAR 1,923.000 (December
2018: SAR 1.923,000).
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLES — NET

Intangible

Propeny and cquipment assets
2019
Office

Computer Furniture Mator egnipment &

Hardware and fixtures vehicles other assets Total Sofliware Total
Cost:
At 1 January 2019 5234 3,292 355 1,484 10,367 10,571 20,938
Additions 2% 16 26
Disposals - _ .- - - - "
Al 31 December 2019 5,234 3,292 REN 1,502 10,393 10,571 20,964
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization;
AL January 2019 3361 1,411 303 956 6,031 8,603 14,634
Charpe for the vear 507 934 20 260 2071 1024 3095
Disposal
At 31 December 2019 4,168 2,395 323 1,216 8,102 9,627 17,729
Net book value
31 December 2019 1.066 897 32 296 220 o4 3235

Intangible
Property and equipment assels
2018
Office

Computer Furniture Motor equipment &

Hardware and fixtures vehicles other assets Total Software Total
Cost:
At ] January 2018 4573 2,720 355 1,399 9,047 9,488 18,535
Additions 661 572 87 1320 1,083 2403
Disposals - - . -
At 31 December 2012 5234 3202 355 1,486 10,367 10,571 20,938
Accumutated
depreciation and
amortization:
At 1 January 2018 249 1,034 283 698 4,506 7,610 12,116
Charge for the year 870 377 20 238 1,525 993 2518
Disposal - .- - .
At 31 December 2018 3,361 1.411 303 956 6,031 2,603 14,634
Net book value
31 Decenmber 2018 1,873 1,881 52 330 4,336 1.968 6,304




SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 Deceniber 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

15. MATHEMATICAL RESERVES FOR LIFE INSURANCE OPERATIONS

The mathematical reserves for life insurance contracts at December 31, 2019 were certified by an independent actuary, whose
report states that the mathematical provisions are computed in a manner that conlorms to the appropriate actuarial standards of

31 December

31 December

1019 2018
Benefit expense (recognized in profit or loss)
Current service cost 664 1,295
Commission ratc cost 56 100
Benefit expense 720 1,395

practice and meet adequately the Company’'s liabilities arising from its entire life insurance business cyele.

The movement in the mathematical provision during the year is as tollows:

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of the year 1,437 1,317
Additional pravision during the ycar 97 (80)
Balance at ending of the year 1,534 1437

16. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

Insurance Operations:
Sundry creditors and stale cheques 41,369 13.882
Brokerage payable 3,664 1.289
Chairman and Direclors’ remuneration 3,242 2477
Board atiendance and silting fees 77 268
Professional fees 34 209
CCHI fee 2 3
SAMA fec - 12
Others 13,665 18,138
62,053 36,278

17, EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The following tables summarise the components of emplovecs’ end of service benefits recognised in the statement of income,
accumulated surplus and amounts recognised in the statement ol comprehensive income and statement of financial position of

insurance opcrations:
17.1 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Present value of delined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 1,785 3.849
Current service cost 664 1.265
Commission rale cosl 56 100
Actuarial (gain) on detined henefit plan (62) (804
Benetils paid (913) (2.655)
Present value of detined benetit obligation at end of the year 1,530 1,785




SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

17. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)
17.2 Amount recognized in the statement of financial position

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Present value of defined benelit obligation 224 1,785
Payable to outpoing employee 1,306 --
Fair value of plan asscts - --
Net liability at end of the year 1,530 1785
Benefit expense (recogaized in profit or loss)
Current service Cost 664 1,295
Commission ratc cost 56 100
720 1,395

Benefit expense

17.3 Defined benefit obligation sensitivity analysis

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Movement in net liability recognised in financial position
Net liability at beginning of the year 1,785 3,849
Charge recognised in profit or loss 720 1,393
Actuarial (gain) recognised in olher comprehensive income (62) (804)
Benefits paid ©13) {2.655)
Net liability at end of the year 1,530 1,783

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Principal actuarial assumption
Discount rate 3.40% 4.30%
Salary increase rate 3.40% 4.30%

Return on plan assets
18. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit amounting to SR 15 millien (31 December 2018: SR 18.3 million) kept with a local bank. represented 135% of
this period up share capital of the company which is maintained in accordance with the Cooperalive Insurance Companics
Control Law issucd by SAMA. This Statutory deposit cannot be withdrawn without the consent of SAMA. Accrued commission
on statutory deposit is reported separately under shareholders™ assets and shareholders’ liabilities in accordance with SAMA
instructions.



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

19.ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

19.1 Zakat base summary is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Net profit / {loss) for the year, as adjusted for (3,131 {100 .429)
Non - deductible items 35,229 (5,061}
Sharcholders’ capital 100,000 100,000
Accumulated deficit at beginning of year {174,5758) (37.318)
Reduction of share capital - 22,000
Provisions 95,072 41017
Other additions 76,772 -
Property and cquipment — net {2,291) -
Other deductions {17,867) -
Total 81,209 20,209
Zakat basc for Saudi sharcholders at 84.88%% 70,802 17,153
Zakat at 2.5% 1,770 429

Zakat is payable at 2.5% of higher of the approximate zakat basc and adjusted net income attributable to the Saudi
sharcholdcrs.

19.2 Income tax

The curcent year’s proaision is based on the following:

M December 31 December
2019 2018
Net loss for the year {31,131} (157,957
MNon - deductible items 35,219 54903
Carried torward losses up to 25 % ol current year profit (155) -
adjusted net profit f loss 3,943 (103,054}
Tax basc for non-saudi sharcholders at 15.12% 465 -
Tax al 20% 03 -
Penalty for failure 1o file 24 -
Delay penalty at 1 % of unpaid taxes for each 30 days of delay 7 -
Total taxes and penalties payable 124 -
19.3 Provision for zakat and tax
Movements in zakat is as follows:
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Balance al beginning of the year 2,105 3.801
Provision during the year and prior years 1,770 1,000
Payment during the year - (2.696)

Balance at end ot the year 3,875 205




SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

19. ZAKAT AND INCOME TANX {continued)
19.3  Provision for zakat and tax (Continued})

Movements in the income tax is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Balance at beginning ol the year 165 165
Provision for the prior years 93 -
Penalties for late filing 31 -
Balance at end of the year 189 165
Zakat and income tax payable 4,164 2,270
Shareholdings
Following is the sharcholding structure of the Company as on:
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Shareholding subject to Zakat 84.88% 84.88%
Shareholding subject to Income Tax 15.12% 15.12%

19.4 Zakat and tax assessment status

The Company has filed zakat and income tax returns 1ill the linancial year 2018 with the General Autherity of Zakat and Tax
({the “GAZT™), obtained the required certilicate for year 2017 and is in the process ol oblaining the certilicate for year 2018,

The GAZT issued assessment for the years 2006 - 2013 with an additional liability of SAR 8.5 million. The Company has filed
objection on initial asscssment betore GAZT and the Company has received revised assessment with an additional liability of
SAR 4.5 million. The Company has further filed objection appeal before GAZT and is confident of a favorable outcome,
However, the Company has booked a provision of SAR 2.1 million afler scttlement of SAR 1.7 miltion in year 2018.The lotal
provision at the end of year 2019 stand that SAR 4.2 million.

19.5 VAT registration
The Company has obtained VAT registration certificate as required by applicable law,

20. SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Authorised:
10,000,000 (2018: 10.000.000) shares of SAR 10 cach 100,000 100,000
Allotted, issucd and fully paid
10,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000) shares ol SAR 10 ¢ach 100,000 100,000

During 2018 the Board of Direclors recommended (he exira ordinary general assembly to approve the capital reduction of SR
22 mitlion. The Company afler receiving approval from SAMA and CMA, called for a gencral assembly meeling and the
reduction of capital of SR 22 million was approved by the general assembly on 05 Junc 2018,

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the share capital of the Company was held by the following sharcholders:

Percentage No. of shares 2019 No. of shares 2018

The New India Assurance Co. Lid 5,170% 517,000 317,000
lLife Insurance Corporation of India 4.975% 497,300 497,500
LIC (International) BSC 4.975% 497,500 497,500
Local shareholders and general public 84.880% 8,488,000 8.488.000

100% 19,000,000 12,000,000




SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

21. OTHER UNDERWRITING EXPENSES
31 December

31 December

2019 2018

CCHNI fees 2 218
Third Party Administralor (IPA) charges 1 2,856
SAMA fees (13 892
Medical, motor cards and others 489 5304
489 5,270

22

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
31 December

31 December

2019 2018

Operating and administrative salaries and benefits 9,816 33,486
Professional fees 3,623 3,612
Depreciation and amortization 3,093 4,040
Rent 2,182 848
Silling Fees to Board and Committees 8%4 1,523
IT cxpenses 457 1,604
Tadawul fees 445 22
Penalties 349 17
Travel expenses 104 359
Repair and maimenance 76 750
Car mainlenance & .
OfTice supplies and printing and stationery 5 229
irectors travelling & other expenses - L1
Other expenses 1,869 1.358
22,919 47,859

23. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARFE (Restated)

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

(Restated)

Net loss for the year before Zakat (SAR in thousand riyals) (34,571) (158.957)
Weighled average number of shares

in issue throughout the ycar 10,000,000 10,600,000

Basic and diluted loss per share (3.46) (1590

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing the net income (or the relevant periods by the weighted
average number of issued outstanding sharcs. The relevant averages are 10,000,000 shares for the year ended 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: 10,000,000 shares),

The weighted average number of shares have been retrospectively adjusted for all prior periods o reflect the reduction in share
capital in line with the requirement of IAS 33 “Harnings per share™.
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related partics represent major sharcholders, directors and key management persennel ot the Company, and companies of which
they are principal owners and any other entities controlled, joinly controlled or significantly intluenced by them. Pricing
policies and terms of these transactions arc approved by the Company's management and Board of 1Direclors. Transactions with
related parlies are conducted on similar terms and conditions as compared with external parties and on arm’s length basis. The
following are the details of the major related party transaciions during the year and the related balances:

Related parties

mature of transactions Amount of transactions Balances
2019 28 2019 2018
The New [ndia Assurance
Company Limited
{Shareholder) -Reinsurance prentium ceded (3) 49 - --
-Reinsurance commission income 9 - -
-Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims - 8 - -
-Balance receivable - - 2,171 2,932
-Share compensation balance payable - - 5,932 5,932
Life Insurance Corporation of
Incha (Shareholder) -Share compensation balance pavable - -- L -
Other Sharcholders -Share compensation balance pavable - - N 91
Alinma Makkah ['und
{Common Directors) -lnvestment - - - -
Directors and Executive
Commilles -Remuneration - %00
-Balance payable - - 3.137 2477
Direclors and Executive
Commitles -Meeling atiendance fee - 423 - -
-Balance payable - - 77 244

Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Company, dircctly or indirectly and comprise 10p management executives including the Chief Executive Officer. 1Xeputy
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Ofticer of the Company.



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES recontinued)

The following table shows the annual salaries. remuneration and allowances obtained by the Board members and top 5
execulives lor the vear ended 31 December 2019 and 201 8:

Top executives
including the CEOQ

2019 ROD members and CFO
SR SR
Salaries and compensation - 2896
Allowances - 1,014
Annual remuneration 1,560 -
Employees’ end of service benefits - -
Total 1,560 3910
2018
Salaries and compensation - 3,263
Allowances - 1142
Annual remuncration 900 -
Employees end of serviec benefits - -
Total 900 4,405

25, Surplus distribution to policyholder

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year - 6,346
Surplus paid to policy holders - {6.346)

Balance at the ending of the year - -
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

INSURANCE RISKS

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and
timing of any resulting claim. ‘The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is thal the actual claims and benelit
payments cxceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severily of claims,
actual benefits paid are greater than originally cstimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.

The variability of risks is improved by diversitication of risk of loss to a large portfotic of insurance contracts as a more
diversitied porifolio is less likely to be afTected across the board by change in any subsel of the portfolio, as well as unexpected
outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by carcful selection and implementation of underwriling stralegy and
guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements,

Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quola share basis with retention limits varying by product lines.
Amounts recoverable frem reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions vsed for ascertaining the
underlying policy benefits and are presented in the statement of financial posilion as reinsurance assets,

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its dircet obligations to its policyholders and thus a
credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, (o the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed
under such reinsurance arrangements.

Sensitivities

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions such as the average loss ratio with all
other assumptions held constant showing the impact on liabilities and net loss.

December 31, 2019 (.hange_ in II:IIp{lFllﬁn Impact on
assumptions liabilitics net profit
Clai tio +5% 440 440
aim ra 5% (440) (440}
December 31, 2018 Change in lmpact on Impact on
assumplions liabilities net loss
Claim ratio +3% 7,992 7,992
A .59 (7.992) (7,992

Reinsurance risk

Similar to other insurance companics, in order to minimize linancial exposure arising from large claims. the Company, in the
normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposcs. Such reinsurance arrangements
provide for greater diversitication of business. allow management 10 control exposure to potential losses arising from large
risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A signiticant portion of the reinsurance is affected under proportional treatics
such as quota share with surplus and non-proportional treatics such as excess of loss.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses trom reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its
reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic rcgions, activitics or cconomic
characteristics of the reinsurers,

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company [fom its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured (o the extent that the reinsurcr fails to mect the obligations under
the reinsurance agrecments.



SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE"
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTFES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Finaneial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include tinancial assets, financial liabilities. reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities, ‘The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with cach item.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarised below:

27.1 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated wilh the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Cempany’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at the
Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from
legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks arise
from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s abjective is 10 manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation
with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of controls over eperational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls
in the following arcas:

- Requiremenls for appropriate segrepation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilitics;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Documentation of controls and procedures;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operalional risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to
address the risks identified;

- FEthical and busincss standards; and

- Risk mitigation policics and procedures.

27.2 Protection and Saving

For protection and saving. thc main risk is the mortality, morbidity (permanent or temporary disability) of the insured and
pelicyholder behavior risk.

Mortality risk
Actual policyholder death experience en life insurance policies is higher than expected.

Morbidity risk
Policyholder health-related claims are higher than expected.

Policyholder behavior risk

Policyholders® behavior in discontinuing und reducing contributions or withdrawing benefits prior to the maturity of contracts is
worse than expected. Poor persistency rates may lead to tewer policics remaining on the books to defray future fixed expenses
and therefore reduce the future positive cash flows from he business written, potentially affecting Company”s abilily to recover
deferred acquisition expenses.

This is managed through an effective and clcarly defined underwriting strategy. There are various levels of underwriting carried
out. including declaration of good health, medica! questionnaire, reports from specialists/consultants and comprehensive medical
tests. The Company also conducts linancial, litestyle and occupational underwriting to ascertain the degree of risk carried by the
insured and to determine whether or not it could be classitied as a standard life.

For group protection and saving, the monality risk is compounded due to the concentration of lives. for example employees in
the same workplace. The Company has a clearly defined underwriling strategy. There are various levels of underwriting carricd
out, including declaration ot good health, medical questionnaire, reports from specialists/consultants and comprehensive medical
tests, The Company also looks at the nature of aclivity carried out by the group. group size. mix of lives by geographical
regions, cultural background and manual/non-manual worker split. :

The individual family and group protection and saving portfolio is protected through an efficient reinsurance arrangement in
accordance with WAL A Insurance Standards. This protects the Company from adverse mortality/morbidity expericnce. There is
a maximum retention per life under the reinsurance arrangement which protects the Company from single large losses. Multiple
claims and concentrations of risk arc also covered under the arrangement.
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27, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continted)
27.3 General [nsurance
Medical

The Company's underwriting sirategy is designed to ensurc that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risks and level of
insured benefits, This is largely achieved (hrough diversification across industry sectors and peography. the use of medical
screening in order 10 ensure that pricing lakes account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular view of
actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. The Company further enlorces a
policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments
that can negatively impact the Company. The Company has reinsurance cover to limit the losses for any individual claim.

Motor

For motor contracts, the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of vehicles. The
Company only underwrites comprehensive polices for owner/drivers over 21 years of ape.

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured partics and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key factors that
influcnce the level of claims. The Company also has apprepriate risk management procedures 10 control the cost of claims. The
Company has reinsurance cover [or such damage 1o limit the losses for any individual clatm,

Property
For property insurance contracts the main risk is firc. The Company only underwrites policies for properlies containing fire
detection equipment.

These contracls are underwrillen by reference to the replacement value of the propertics and contents insured. The cost of
rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the time taken to restart operations which leads 10 business
interruptions are the main lactors that influence the level of claims. The Company has appropriate reinsurance cover lor such
damage to limit losses for any individual clainy. These arc covered under proportional and non-proporiional (realies.

Marine

For marine insurance, the main risks are loss or damage to marine cratt and accidents resulting in the lotal or partial loss of
cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine ¢lass ol business is (o ensure that policies are well diversified in terms of cargo, vessels
and shipping routcs covered. The Company has reinsurance cover Lo limit losses for any individual claim.

Engineering

For engincering insurance, the main risks are loss or damage to the construction/crcction works caused by fire, explosion,
natural perils like floods, carthquakes, hailsiorms, etc. Selection of risks and proper underwriting are the eriteria for this line of
business. The Company has appropriate rcinsurance cover for such risks 1o limit losses for any Individual claim. Thesc arc
covered under engineering proportional and non-proportional treaties.

Public liability

For public liability insurance. the main risks are lcgal liabilitics of the insured (owards third party deaths, bodily injury or
property damage arising out of insurcd premiscs, business operations or projects handled by the insured.

This insurance policy is underwritten based on the lurnover of the Company or the value of the contract, nature / occupation of
the premises, nature of contracts handled, The Company has appropriate reinsurance cover to limit the losses for any individual
clain.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the reporting date are adequate.
However, these amounts arc not certain and actual payments may ditfer from the claims liabilities provided in the tinancial
slatements. The insurance claim liabilitics are sensilive 1o the various assumptions. [t has not been possible to quantily the
sensitivity of specitic variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.
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27, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continucd)
27.4 Claims management risk

Claims management risk may arise within the Company in the event of inaccurate or incomplete casc reserves and claims
setilements, poor service quality or excessive claims handling costs. These risks may damage the Company and undermine its
ability to win and retain business, or incur punitive damages. These risks can occur at any stage of the claims lite cycle. The
Company’s claims teams arc focused on delivering quality, reliability and speed of service the policyholders. Their aim is to
adjust and process ¢laims in a fair. efficient and (imely manncr, in accordance with the poliey’s terms and conditions, the
regulatory environment, and the busincss’ broader interests. Prempt and accurate case reserves are set for all known claims
liabilities, including provisions for expenses, as soon as a reliable estimate can be made of the claims liabitity.

Sources of uncertzinty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding claims,
whether reported or net, and includes cxpected claims seltlement costs. The principal assumption underlying the liability
estimates is that the Company's future claims development will follow a similar pattern to past claims development experience.
This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim infiation factors and claim numbers for
each accident year. Additional qualitative judgements are used 10 assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the
future, for example: one—oft occurrence; changes in market factors such as public atlitude to claiming: economic conditions: as
well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to
assess the extent to which cxternal factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.
Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made
under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying ang
possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in
future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in
the futurc, for example eng-ofl' occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic
conditions, Judement is further used to assess the extent to which cxternal factors such as judicial decisions and government
legislation aftect the cstimates.

[n particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected uliimate cost of claims reported at the statement of financial
position date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported {([BNR) at the statement of financial position
date.

27,5 Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
reasonable estimates ot the most lkely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predicl with
certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notificd claim is asscssed on a
scparate, case by case basis with duc regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical
evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates arc reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is
available.

The estimation of [BNR is gencrally s'ubjcct to a greater degree of uncertainly than the estimation of the cost of setiling claims
already nolified to the Company. in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation process takes into
account the past claims reporting pattern and detatls of reinsurance programs.

The ultimate cost of oulstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques such as
Chain ladder method, Bornhuelier - Ferguson method and Expected Loss Ratio Method.

The muin assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the development of paid
and incurred losses. average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. | listorical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed. either
by being reserved al the face value of loss adjuster cstimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development.
[n most cases. no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumplions
used are those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinned)
Process used to decide on assumptions fContinued)

Additional qualitative judgement is used 10 assess the extent 1o which past trends may not apply in luture, (e.g., to reflect one-eff’
occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, ¢conomic conditions. levels of claims
intlation,

judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as porifolio mix, policy features and claims handling
procedures) in order 1o arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of ¢laims that present the likely outcome Irom the range of possible
outcomes, taking accounl of all the uncertainties involved.

The premium labilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (uncarncd premium reserve and
premium deliciency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be suflicient to service the future expected claims and
expenses likely to occur on the uncxpired policics as at the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is
determined using estimates and assumptions bascd on the experience during the expired peried of the contracts and expectations
of future events that arc believed to be reasonable.

27.6 Reserving and ultimate reserves risk

Reserving and ultimatc rescrves risk occurs within the Company where established insurance liabilities are insufticient through
inaccurate forecasting, or wherce there is inadequate allowance for expenses and reinsurance bad debts in provisions. To manage
reserving and ultimale reserves risk. our actuarial team uses a range of recognized techniques to project gross premiums wrilten,
monitor claims development pallerns and siress-test ultimate insurance liability balances.

The objeclive of the Company’s reserving policy is to produce accurate and reliable estimates that are consistent over time and
across classes ol business.

27.7 Capital risk management

The Company s objectives when managing capifal arc:

Te comply with the insurance capital requirements as set out in the Law on the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance
Companies (“Insurance Law™). The Company's current paid up capital is in accordance with Article 3 of the Insurance Law;

To saleguard the Company”s ability to continuc as a going concern so that it can centinue te provide returns for shareholders and
henelits for other stakeholders; and

To provide an adequate return to sharcholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of risk.

In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia solvency regulations and the minimum capital requirements are set and regulated by the Saudi
Central Bank {"SAMA™). Also refer note 2 1o these financial statements.

27.8 Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument may tluctvale as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities
traded in the market. The Company is exposed to market risk with respect to its investments in quoted securities held by il
directly. The Company limits market risk by actively monitoring the key factors that affect stock and the market movements,
including analysis of the operational and financial performance of the investee.

The Company is not significantly exposure to the market risk because Company do not have quoted security.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT fcontinued)

27.9 Credit risk

Credil risk refers 10 the risk that counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulling in financial loss to the
Company. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum exposure to credit risk to the Company is the
carrying valuc as disclosed in the statement of financial posilion,

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:
Re-insurers” share of insurance liabilitics:
Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

Amounts due from insurance contract holders; and
Amounts due lrom insurance intermediaries,

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with credilworlhy counlerparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financtal
loss from detaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterpartics are continuously monitored, and the
aggrcgate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst counterparties.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. ‘The credit worthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by
reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract helders with whom it conducis regular
business. Management information reported to the Company inchides details of provisions for impairment on insurance
receivables and subscquent writc-offs. Where there oxists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous
groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried oul by the Company.

The credit risk on liquid lunds is limited because most of the counterpariies are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the insurance
rcceivables.

The Company sccks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by selling eredit limits tor individual customers and
moniloring outstanding receivables,
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27, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT fcontinued)

27.9  Credit risk (contlinued)
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credil risk for the components of the financial position as at 31 December:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Assets

Cash and cash cquivalenls 10,250 2979
lnvestments 1,923 1,923
Premiums and reinsurance receivables, net 1,053 53,383
Reinsurers” share of outstanding claims 32881 44958
Reinsurers™ share of ctaims incurred but not reported 3,807 9,520
Prepayments and other asscts 11,665 15,243
[ue from related parties 2,171 2,932
Accrued income on statutory deposit 2,023 2,023
Statutory deposit 15,000 18,300
Total 80,773 151,261

27.10  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter dilTiculty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments, Liquidity risk may result trom the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair
value, Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on rcgular basis that sufficient funds are available 1o meel any Tuture
commilments us well as obtaining continued financial support from sharcholders (it needed).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT fcontinued;

Special commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will aftect future protitability or
the fair values of tinancial instruments.

The Company did not have any instruments which attracted any special commission so there no special commission rate
risk arises.

Geographical concentration of risk

All of the Company's insurance risks related to insurance policics arc written in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair valuc is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based en the presumption that the transaction to
sell the assct or transfer the liability takes place either:

in the principal market for the assct or liability, or

in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market tor the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an assct or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would usc when pricing the assct or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

The fair values of recognized financial instruments arc not signifticantly different from the carrying values included in the
financial statements,

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of tinancial instruments;
l.evel 1: Quoted market prices in active market for the identical instrument (i.¢., withoul medification or adjustment);

Level 2: Quoted market prices in aclive markel for similar assets and liabilitics or other valuation techniques tor which all
significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: Valuation lechnigues for which any significant input is not based on obscrvable market data.

The 1able below presents the financial instruments at their fair valucs as of 31 December 2019 based on the fair value
hicrarchy:

31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments
- Insurance operations -- -- 1,923 1,923
- Shareholders’ operations -- -- -~ --
Total -- -- 1,923 1,923
31 December 2018 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments

- - 1.923 1.923

- Insurance operations
- Sharcholders’ operations

- - 1523 1,923

Total
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT rcontinted)
Fair value of financial instruments fcontinued)

The unlisted scouritics as at 31 December 2019 amounting to SAR 1,923,000 (31 December 2018: SAR 1,923,000) are
stated at cost in the absence of aclive markets or other means of reliably measuring their fair value. For (inancial
inslruments thal are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (bascd on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair
value measuremenl as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

CREDIT QUALITY OF INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December
Investments 2019 Rating 2018  Rating

29

Insurance Operations:
Availuble for sale

Equity 1,923 Unrated 1923 Unrated
[nvestment in real estate fund -

1,923 1,923
Sharcholders’ Operations:
Statutory deposit — Riyad Bank 17,023 A- 20323 A-
Avaitable for sale
Sharia Compliant Fund -
Adecm Capital -
17,023 20,323

The ratings have been obtained from the external rating agencies.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process. business segments have been approved by Managemenl in
respect of the Company's activities, assets and liabititics. Information disclosed in the note is based on current reporting 10
the chief operating decision maker, Operating scgments do not include sharcholders™ operations of the Company.

Scgment asscts do not include insurance operations” cash and cash equivalents, receivables, prepaid expenses, invesiments,
advances and other receivables, duc trom sharcholders’ operations and properly and eguipmenl. Accordingly, they are
included in unallocated asscts.

Segment liabilities do not include reinsurers’ balances payable, unearned commission income, employees™ end of service
benelits, accrued expenses and other liabilities. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated liabilitics. Thesc unatlocated
asscts and liabilitics are not reported to chiel operating decision maker under the related segments and are monitored on a
centralized basis.
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded ¢o thousand

31. Change in accounting treatment in relation to zakat and income tax
The change in the accounting treatment for zakat and income tax (as explained in note 5) has the fotlowing impact on the line
items of the annual statements of income, statement of financial position and changes in equily.
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2019;
prcv}i\cs;us]y Effect of As restated
Financial statement stated for reslatlement for year
impacted Account car ended relating to ended
¥ zakat and December
December income tax 31,2019
31, 2018 '
Statement of income Zakat charge for the year - (1,000} {1,000}
Statement of income Income tax charge for the year - - -
Statement of income Basic and diluted loss per share (16) - (16)
Statement of income  Net loss for the period attributable to the
sharcholders after zakat and income tax (157,957) (1,000) (138,957
Statement of income Zakat charge for the year (1,000} 1,000 -
Statement of income [ncome tax charge for the year - - -
32. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

33.

34,

The Company has liled a legal suil for recovery of SR 2.8 million against a company on account of renl and expenses on
improvements, which the Company did on a rented property. However, the property could not be delivered to the Company duc
to certain non-compliance of legal requirements. The Company, bascd on internal legal opinion, is of the view that the judgment
will be in favor of the Company. Accordingly, SR 2.8 million comprising SR 1.2 million on account of rent and SR 1.6 millien
being advances paid for initial cost to establish the site for use of the Company's operations, which were previously charged out
have now been recorded under prepayment and other assels

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The outbreak of navel caronavirus (“COVID-19") since early 2020, its spread across mainland China and then globally including
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the declaration of this pandemic by the World Health Organization has resulied globally in
governmental authorities imposing quarantines and (ravel restrictions of varying scope; has led (o signilicant disruptions in the
retail, travel and hospitalily industries, and in globatl trade. [t has resulted in decreased economic activity and lowered. Whilst it is
challenging now, to predict the full extent and duration of its business and economic impact, however. considering the
circumstances of the Company (Note 2) and as of the issuance daie of these financial statements, no significant changes are
required to the judgements and key estimates and management believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has had no material effects
with respeet to Company’s reperted results for the year ended 31 December, 2019.

lFurther, the Company's business remains largely wnaffected as the insurance industry is facilitated by the Government through
free treatments of the COVID-19 affected patients. Based on these factors, the Company’s management believes that the COVID
-19 pandemic has had no direct material effects on Company’s reported resulls for the vear ended 31 December 2019, However,
in the view of the current uncerlainty, any future change in the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment wo the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities attected in the tuture periods.

[n response to the Covid-19 pandemic, SAMA issued a circular 189 (the “circular™) dated 8 May 2020 to all insurance
companigs in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Amongst other things, the circular instructed insurance companies to extend the
period of validity of all existing retail metor insurance policies by further two months as well as providing a twe-month
additional coverage lor all new retail motor policies written within one month of this circular, Considering the circumstances ol
the Company (Note 2), there is no impact on Company's reported resulis for the year ended 31 December 2019,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain prior ycar amounts or balances have been reclassitied to conform with the current presentation,

. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statcment has been approved by the board of direciors of the Company on 16 Sha’ban. 1442 corresponding to 29
March 2021 as authorized by the board of dircetors,



